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Dear New Immigrants, we know that it’s not easy to 
begin a new life,

That’s the Reason that We are Here!
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration is responsible for the assistance given by 
the State of Israel to new immigrants* and returning residents, from the first 
organizational stage until your absorption and integration into all spheres of life 
in Israeli society. 

This brochure concentrates the information that you need, prior to arrival in Israel 
and during your initial days in the country, in order for you to benefit from all the 
services you are entitled to.

Welcome!
*Those who are recognized as new immigrants, immigrant citizens, and returning minors.

Required Documents When Making Aliyah to Israel
Make Sure You Have The following Documents With You and 
Not in Your Luggage

·	Valid passport with new-immigrant visa (if the passport on which the 
new-immigrant visa was stamped has expired, one should present a new-
immigrant visa in addition to the valid passport).
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·	Original public documents, with a notarized translation, 
authenticated with an “apostille” stamp, or authenticated 
in accordance with the “chain of signatures” regulation:

– Birth certificate (the original one). (Only an original birth 
certificate from countries of the former Soviet Union issued 
before 1998, does not require authentication).

– A current document that is proof of a change of name – If a 
change of name was carried out (private name/ family name).

– A current document that is proof of current family status 
issued during the past half year, for example: a marriage 
certificate, an authorization of divorce, a death certificate of 
spouse, a document proving personal status for unmarried 
people, and so forth.

	 If necessary, it is possible that further documentation will be 
required regarding the personal status prior to the present 
one. Insofar as it is a country that issues a document that 
proves previous personal status, a legally authenticated 
document will be requested as mentioned above. In the case 
of a country that does not issue a document regarding previous 
personal status, the applicant should provide a notarized 
statement regarding his/ her previous personal status signed 
in the presence of an Israeli consul abroad/ a notary abroad/ a 
notary in Israel/ a consul of the country of origin of the foreigner 
who is in Israel.

– A document confirming that there is no previous criminal 
record: an official document from the country of origin 
(including also changes of name) that was issued during the 
past half year confirming that the applicant has no previous 
criminal record or any criminal convictions. If necessary a 
federal character reference or document from the region of 
the invitee will be required, depending on the matter.

– Original documents proving one’s Judaism and/ or eligibility 
in accordance with the law of return.

·	Registration as “born” – if one of the members of the couple 
is Israeli, and they had children born abroad who were not 
registered as “born” in an official Israeli mission abroad, when 
registering at the Population and Immigration Authority, one 
should provide a birth confirmation from the maternity 
hospital that the mother is the woman who gave birth to the 
child and an original and authenticated birth certificate.

Please note, the Population and Immigration Authority has 
the authority to demand additional documents according 
to its judgment.

·	An official document certifying authorization of guardianship 
(If necessary) for a relative who made aliyah with you, with an 
“apostille” stamp.

·	Letter from an aliyah emissary (shaliach) – if you have a letter, 
any other documents that can verify your situation and you 
believe are relevant.
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Upon Arrival at Ben Gurion Airport, You Will Find the Following 
Services:
Individual Guidance – before passport control a representative of the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration will meet you in order to guide you through the process. 
In the event that a representative does not meet you, go to the Passport Control 
area, Border Control, or the Information Desk at the luggage claim area, and you 
can receive assistance locating the Ministry representative.

Light refreshments, a nurse, a mother-and-baby room, and telephone calls 
within Israel – at the Area of Absorption Facilities of the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration (Mitham HaKlita) at the Airport.

New Documents – At our office at Ben Gurion airport we will issue you - a new-immigrant 
certificate (te’udat oleh) or an eligibility certificate for a family (te’udat zakaut) 
(single children up to the age of 21 are listed in the eligibility certificate for a family) 
and a temporary identification card or a registration form for the Population and 
Immigration Authority. You will also receive an  authorization of registration for a 
Health Fund, and a form for opening a bank account.

Absorption Basket – this is a financial assistance for daily needs during the 
first six months in Israel. The assistance is in 7 payments. Persons eligible for 
the Absorption Basket receive the first installment in cash at the airport.

The following table lists the updated payments of the Absorption Basket as of 
January 1, 2023:
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Table of updated payments of the Absorption Basket as of January 1, 2023

Payment number Couple Single Par-
ent Family Single

Couple 
Before 

Retirement 
Age

Single Par-
ent Before 
Retirement 

Age

Single 
Before 

Retirement 
Age

Retired 
Couple

Retired Sin-
gle Parent

Retired 
Single

Child Age

0-4

Child Age

 4-18

Child Age

18-21

Supplement 
for Family of 

6 or More

Cash at Airport 2,500 2,300 1,250 2,500 2,300 1,250 2,500 2,300 1,250 250 250 250 0

Bank Transfer 3,826 1,471 1,437 3,669 1,502 1,452 3,617 1,465 2,195 3,036 3,009 3,052 0

1st payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 902

2nd payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 902

3rd payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 902

4th payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 902

5th payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 901

6th payment 5,246 4,714 2,857 6,724 5,642 3,630 4,200 3,651 2,896 1,407 755 1,171 901

Total payments 37,802 32,055 19,829 46,513 37,654 24,482 31,317 25,671 20,821 11,728 7,789 10,328 5,410
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Health Insurance and Health Fund – being new immigrants, you are eligible for national 
health insurance from the date of receipt of new-immigrant status. In order to realize this 
right, it is necessary to register in one of the health funds of your choice. Registering in a 
health fund can be done at the airport by an absorption counselor at no cost, or at one of 
the branches of the Postal Bank located throughout the country (for a symbolic fee and 
in the presence of both spouses). After 3 weeks from receipt of new-immigrant status, 
registration is also through the website of the National Insurance Institute, free of charge. 
We recommend that you decide the health fund you wish to join before your aliyah. 
Note that you must register within 90 days of your date of aliyah. Following this period, 
registration is through a branch office of the National Insurance Institute.
Your Baggage – at the conclusion of all procedures, you can collect your luggage, 
accompanied by a representative of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration.
Free Transport from the Airport – you are eligible for one-time free transport from the 
airport, along with your luggage, to the destination of your choice. Note: if the destination 
is Eilat or environs, and you wish to arrive by air, please notify an aliyah emissary (shaliach) 
at least two weeks in advance of your aliyah.

Your First Home in Israel
When you arrive in Israel you have the option of staying with friends or relatives, or in an 
apartment you have rented or purchased in advance. If you wish to participate in a Jewish 
Agency absorption program, such as an absorption center, “Bayit Rishon BeMoledet”, or 
similar program, you must arrange this with the Jewish Agency prior to aliyah.
Whom to consult?
The nearest office of the Jewish Agency, or the Global Center:

https://archive.jewishagency.org/he/aliyah/program/5421/

https://archive.jewishagency.org/he/aliyah/program/5421/
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What Activities are Necessary During the First Days in Israel?
Opening a Bank Account – You must open a bank account in Israeli currency, 
and it is recommended to do so as soon as possible, so that we can transfer 
the assistance you are entitled to, and the allowances of the National Insurance 
Institute will be transferred to it, if you are entitled to them. Both spouses must be 
present when opening a bank account, and the account has to be under both their 
names. If one spouse is unable to come to the bank when opening the account, 
it is necessary to bring a notarized power-of-attorney. In order to open a bank 
account you must bring your te’udat zehut and te’udat oleh*.
Note that many banks require an income-tax file number when opening a bank 
account. In the United States: SSN, in Russia: INN, in the rest of the world: TIN (Tax 
Identification Number).
Note that you must make a one-time deposit of at least one shekel in order for 
the bank account to become active and to enable the Ministry to transfer financial 
assistance without difficulty.
After opening the account, you must return to the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration 
and give the absorption counselor the form you received at the airport with the 
details of your bank account, signed by the bank, in order to receive financial assistance into the account. It is advisable 
to bring with you a verification of a deposit.

Whom to consult?

Your choice of commercial banks throughout the country. It is recommended to visit a bank branch close to your 
place of residence.
* By law, a te’udat oleh is used as a te’udat zehut for up to 30 days from the date of issue.
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Consultation at the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration – we will be 
happy to welcome you at our offices in order to provide you with the information 
that you need about the Absorption Basket or assured income (a living allowance 
[dmei kiyum]), employment assistance, educational options for your children, 
information about Hebrew ulpan study, and other forms of Ministry assistance, 
such as rental subsidies.

In order to transfer assistance payments to which you are entitled from the 
Ministry, please supply the personal absorption counselor with verification of 
opening a bank account. It is advisable to bring a verification of a deposit that 
verifies that the account is active.

Whom to consult?
Contact the absorption counselors by making an appointment in 
advance through myVisit or the Digital personal account area or call *2994 
or turn directly to the nearest Ministry of Aliyah and Integration regional 
office (telephone numbers of the branches are published at the end of 
this brochure).
Registration for Hebrew Study – knowledge of Hebrew is essential for 
successful absorption, and it is worthwhile to study the language during 
the first months following aliyah. More information is on page 13 of this 
brochure.

myVisit

https://www.gov.il/en/service/private-area-new-immigrants-and-returning-residents
https://myvisit.com/#!/home/signin/
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Requesting a te’udat zehut and Israeli passport – Upon arrival at Ben Gurion 
airport it is likely that you received a temporary te’udat zehut, valid for nine months, 
from a representative of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration who is authorized by the 
Population and Immigration Authority. If you do not receive a temporary te’udat zehut 
from the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration at the airport, you receive an Authorization of 
Registration in the Population Registry, which you can bring to an office of the Population 
and Immigration Authority in order to receive a permanent te’udat zehut. 

In order to receive a passport or permanent te’udat zehut, it is necessary to make an 
appointment in advance: on the Population Authority website or through the app or 
website of myVisit or by phone *3450. In Israel biometric documents are issued. The 
issuance of a passport involves the payment of a fee. The passport or te’udat zehut will 
be sent to you by mail within 3 weeks.

When you visit the Population Authority, you must have the following documents: a 
foreign passport, te’udat oleh, temporary te’udat zehut or authorization of registration 
in the Population Registry, birth certificates with an “apostille“ stamp, documents that 
are proof of eligibility according to the law of return, and if necessary – a marriage 
certificate, certificate of divorce, or death of spouse with an “apostille“ stamp, other 
documents that are relevant. 

Whom to consult?
The Population and Immigration Authority
www.piba.gov.il | *3450

myVisit

http://www.piba.gov.il
https://myvisit.com/#!/home/signin/


10  |  All the Information You Need for Easy Absorption

Converting a foreign driver’s license to an Israeli 
license – New immigrants are permitted to drive in Israel 
using a valid overseas license for one year only following 
the date of entry into the country. Afterwards, they can 
convert the foreign driver’s license to an Israeli license 
depending on the following conditions:

·	Within 5 years from the date of receiving the status of a new 
immigrant (oleh).

·	On condition that the foreign license has been valid for 
at least 5 years in the country of origin before receiving 
the status of a new immigrant (oleh). If the license has not 
been valid for five years before receiving the status of a new 
immigrant, please turn to the Ministry of Transport.

·	It is necessary to have a notary who speaks the language 
translate and notarize foreign licenses that are not in English 
and sign them.

·	One must be present during the request for the service.

The conversion procedure is as follows:

·	Filling in an online form for issuing a driver’s license.

·	Visiting an authorized photography center in order to issue a 
photograph for the driver’s license.

·	Arrival in person at the licensing bureau. One must arrange 
an appointment in advance through the app or website

	 of myVisit. One must present a new-immigrant certificate 
(te’udat oleh) and a valid driver’s license, which has been 
valid for at least 5 years in the country of origin. One 
should present only original documents. You will receive 
a temporary driver’s license at the licensing bureau. One 
must enquire in advance at what branches of the bureau 
the service of license conversion is available.

·	Payment of fee - options for payment: With a credit card 
via the online government payment service (Sherut 
Hatashlumim Hamemshalti) at the self-service stations, at 
the Israel postal service, at a bank, or through the Ministry 
of Transportation Information Line *5678.

- Owners of a foreign credit card can pay the fee only at the 
Israel postal service.

- After paying the fee, the permanent license will be mailed 
to the address that is registered in the Population and 
Immigration Authority.

Whom to consult?
The Licensing Department – the Ministry of Transport and Road 
Safety National Information Line, *5678, or enter the website:
https://www.gov.il/he/service/convert_driving_license

myVisit

https://www.gov.il/he/service/convert_driving_license
https://myvisit.com/#!/home/signin/
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Assured Income (a living allowance [dmei kiyum])
A new immigrant or family may be eligible for “assured-income” (a living allowance 
[dmei kiyum]) from the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration at the conclusion of the 
Absorption Basket payments, until the end of the first year of aliyah. The assistance is 
provided to those who are not working, and it is possible that an oleh or a family that for 
various reasons were not found to be eligible for the Absorption Basket, according to 
the Absorption Basket regulation, will be found to be eligible for this assistance already 
from the beginning of the first year. You can receive details and conditions of eligibility 
during the first meeting with your personal absorption counselor.

Allowances from the National Insurance Institute
Child Allowances – Once you have supplied your bank account details to a personal 
absorption counselor, the information is transmitted to the National Insurance Institute 
in order for you to receive a child allowance into your bank account. If you do not receive 
the allowance, consult the National Insurance Institute immediately.

Senior Citizen Allowance or Special Senior Citizen Benefit – For details and 
for examining your eligibility consult with the National Insurance Institute. In order 
to investigate eligibility, bring the following documents: te’udat zehut or form of 
Authorization of Registration in the Population Registry, te’udat oleh, and documents 
that attest to your income.

Whom to Consult?
The National Insurance Institute www.btl.gov.il | *6050

http://www.btl.gov.il
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Services, Information, and Assistance During Your First Year of Aliyah
Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Te’udat Zehut Upon making aliyah, the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration issues you a temporary te’udat 
zehut (identity card) or a form of authorization of registration in the Population Registry 
at Ben Gurion Airport. For a permanent te’udat zehut, apply to the nearest branch of the 
Population and Immigration Authority.

The Population and
Immigration Authority
www.piba.gov.il

*3450

Te’udat Oleh A te’udat oleh (immigrant’s certificate) is issued at Ben Gurion Airport or the nearest branch 
office of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration to persons who wish to change their status 
in Israel following receipt of new-immigrant status from the Population and Immigration 
Authority.

Personal absorption
counselors at the Ministry
of Aliyah and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Te’udat Zakaut A te’udat zaka’ut is granted to persons who are determined to be eligible as new 
immigrants. It is issued at Ben Gurion airport or one of the offices of the Ministry of Aliyah 
and Integration following investigation of eligibility.

Personal absorption
counselors at the Ministry
of Aliyah and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Opening a bank
Account

In order to receive financial assistance from various bodies, it is necessary to open a bank 
account at your choice of one of Israel’s commercial banks.

Commercial banks

Financial
Assis tance - the
Absorption 
Basket

Upon making aliyah, the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration provides an “Absorption Basket,” 
financial assistance for the first six months in Israel. The Basket is in seven payments.

Personal absorption
counselors at the Ministry
of Aliyah and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

http://www.piba.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn
Health 
insurance
and 
registering 
for
a health 
fund

Every citizen of Israel is insured for health coverage under the provisions of the National Health 
Insurance Law. A new immigrant (including a returning minor or an immigrant citizen) who is not 
working who has no other source of income, or whose income is lower than the sum set by the 
National Insurance Institute, is eligible for an exemption from health insurance premiums for six 
months from the date of aliyah to Israel. It is possible to receive an exemption for another six months 
(twelve months altogether) on condition that the new immigrant has no other source of income as 
mentioned above, and on a further condition that the new immigrant is receiving assured income 
from the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration. To actualize the additional six months benefit, you must 
provide the National Insurance Institute with confirmation of a receipt of assured income (from the 
Ministry of Aliyah and Integration). The additional exemption will be given only for those months in 
which assured income was paid. In order to receive health services, one must sign up to one of the 
health funds. This can be done at Ben Gurion Airport or a Post Office branch or the website of the 
National Insurance Institute. Someone who is recognized as a “returning minor” or an “immigrant 
citizen” will sign up to a health fund at the branch of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration at Ben 
Gurion airport or at a regional office of the Ministry.

Ben Gurion Airport or Post
Office branch
www.israelpost.co.il 
171

The National Insurance
Institute website
www.btl.gov.il

*6050

Exemption 
from the 
payment 
of national 
insurance 
premiums

New immigrants (including a returning minor or an immigrant citizen) who have no source of income, 
or whose income is lower than the sum set by the National Insurance Institute, are eligible for an 
exemption from national insurance premiums for a period of twelve months from the date of 
making aliyah.

The National Insurance
Institute 
www.btl.gov.il

*6050

Hebrew-
language 
ulpan

You are entitled to an exemption from tuition fees for Hebrew-language study in an ulpan for five 
months of study. According to the temporary order and the budgetary considerations, the period of 
eligibility is 10 years from the date of aliyah. In addition to the ulpan-study track, the Ministry of Aliyah 
and Integration operates the “Voucher Program,” which participates in the costs of Hebrew study 
courses in private frameworks. New immigrants can use their eligibility to study Hebrew in the two 
frameworks mentioned above (not simultaneously) - both in the Ministry of ulpan programs, and with 
the vouchers for study in a private framework.

One should contact the 
absorption counselors by 
making an appointment in 
advance through myVisit, in 
the Digital personal account 
area: www.klita.gov.il

Call *2994 or turn directly to 
the nearest Ministry of Aliyah 
and Integration regional 
office

myVisit

http://www.israelpost.co.il
http://www.btl.gov.il
http://www.btl.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
https://myvisit.com/#!/home/signin/
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Regis tering
children in 
educational
frameworks: 
daycare, 
kindergarten, 
school

In Israel there is a “Compulsory Education Law” - children and teenagers from ages 3-17 (who 
are this age at the start of the school year) must learn in an educational framework (with certain 
exceptions). Registration of children until the age of 3 in a day-care center or a nursery under 
government supervision is done on the Ministry of Labor website. Registration of children in 
kindergarten and elementary school takes place at the regional councils. Registration for high 
school is through the regional council or through the school itself, depending on the council. It 
is usually possible to register online.

For frameworks until the 
age of 3: 
Ministry of Labor
kindergarten and 
elementary school:
 regional councils

Assured income
(a living allowance 
[dmei kiyum])

Following the cessation of Absorption Basket payments, and during the first year, you can 
be eligible for assured income (a living allowance [dmei kiyum]) payments from the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration. To check your eligibility and to receive assistance, consult with a 
personal absorption counselor.

Personal absorption
counselors at the 
Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Concessions on
Cus toms and VAT

New immigrants and persons considered as immigrants can be eligible for Customs concessions 
on importation of personal items, household goods, hand-held work tools, an automobile 
(partial exemption), and other items. Similarly, new immigrants can be eligible for an exemption 
on VAT when purchasing an air conditioner made in Israel only. More information, such as 
importation details, period of eligibility, etc. is available on the Customs Authority website.

The Tax Authority 
www.taxes.gov.il

https://www.gov.il/he/departments/topics/daycare-parents/govil-landing-page
https://www.cityedu.co.il/v2/CityEdu.aspx?SiteID=8&PageID=25001&EduMain=1
http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.taxes.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Allowances from
the National
Insurance 
Institute

Check your eligibility for allowances from the National Insurance Institute. The National Insurance 
Institute
 www.btl.gov.il

*6050

Converting a
driver’s license

New immigrants are permitted to drive in Israel using a valid overseas license for one year 
only following the date of entry into the country. The vehicle must be appropriate to the 
level of the license. New immigrants may be able to convert their foreign license to an Israeli 
license. For information, consult the Ministry of Transport National Information Line or the 
Ministry website.

The Ministry of Transport and 
Road Safety National
Information Line *5678
https://www.gov.il/he/service/
convert_driving_license

Housing Housing assistance is provided through participation in rent from the Ministry of 
Construction and Housing, or those entitled to it – in public housing, starting in the eighth 
month of the first year. To check eligibility for housing assistance, consult with a personal 
absorption counselor.

Personal absorption
counselors at the Ministry
of Aliyah and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Discount on 
property taxes

New immigrants, immigrant citizens, returning minors and returning residents can be 
eligible for a discount of up to 90% on property taxes during one year of the first two years 
following aliyah (depending on the regulations of the local authority, and the dimensions of 
the apartment). This discount is not given to returning minors. To receive a discount, consult 
with the Collections Department of the local authority and present your te’udat oleh or 
eligibility certificate.

Local authorities

http://www.btl.gov.il
https://www.gov.il/he/service/convert_driving_license
https://www.gov.il/he/service/convert_driving_license
http://www.klita.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Employment Personal absorption counselors will assist you to devise an individualized vocational plan, that 
includes assistance granted by the Ministry for vocational integration in Israel, such as participation 
in the costs of a professional training course (Voucher Program), preparatory course for professional 
licensing exams, vocational ulpan for those eligible, promoting placement in employment and may 
include assistance in funding salaries during the first months of employment, help in finding work, 
and more.

Employment counselors 
at the Ministry of Aliyah 
and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Professional
Licensing

New immigrants who have a regulated profession (profession that requires licensing in Israel), who 
wish to practice their profession in Israel and receive an Israeli license, must undergo licensing 
procedures in Israel according to law and the regulations of the corresponding licensing body.

Personal absorption
counselors
the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Income Tax
Concessions

New immigrants, immigrant citizens, returning minors and returning residents may be eligible for 
an exemption on income tax, and reporting on income and assets from a foreign source that were 
earned or created abroad, for a 10-year period.

Income Tax Authority
www.taxes.gov.il

Students New-immigrant students who are accepted for studies at an institution of higher education, or 
post-high-school studies in Israel, can receive assistance from the Student Authority. 
The main assistance consists of funding for studies, guidance, accompaniment and more, 
according to Student Authority regulations. The period of eligibility – within 36 months from the 
date of receipt of new-immigrant status or eligibility as a new immigrant not counting the period 
of military/ national/ civilian service.

The Student Authority of 
the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.taxes.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il


17

Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Soldiers A new-immigrant soldier recognized by the army as a lone soldier or as eligible for family payments 
(tashmash) may be eligible for a monthly grant from the IDF and a monthly grant from the Ministry of 
Aliyah and Integration in addition to the salary.
A lone person serving in national/ civilian service may receive a monthly grant from the Ministry of 
Aliyah and Integration, similarly to a lone soldier. 
A new-immigrant soldier recognized as a lone soldier and a lone person serving in national/ civilian 
service may be eligible for rental assistance from the Ministry of Construction and Housing. A lone 
soldier may also receive assistance from the IDF for a housing solution fitting his needs.

Personal Absorption
Counselors at the 
Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Ministry of Construction
and Housing
www.moch.gov.il

Scientists The Center for Integration in Science provides assistance to new-immigrant or returning-resident 
scientists: counseling and guidance, participation in salary and subsistence allowances for PhD 
students and students in post-doctoral programs. The assistance is dependent on meeting the 
conditions of eligibility.

Personal absorption
counselors at the 
Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Business
Entrepreneurs

The program for encouraging new-immigrant entrepreneurs is intended for supporting the 
development of small and medium-sized businesses, or establishing and developing an existing ones. 
It may include assistance such as: assistance in mapping requirements, building a business model 
for a new business or for the development of an existing one, assistance in preparing a business plan, 
loans with favorable conditions, advice and business mentoring in entrepreneurial topics and taxes 
for businesses, as well as professional enrichment meetings (workshops) in a range of areas.

Personal absorption
counselors at the 
Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.moch.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
http://www.klita.gov.il
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Coordinators for New Immigrants at the Local Authorities
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration provides support to local authorities for hiring local aliyah coordinators 
(proyectorim). The coordinators can communicate with you in your native language, are at your disposal in most local 
authorities and their main task is to guide you during all the initial stages of absorption so your integration can be 
easier.
The coordinators serve as intermediaries between the olim and specialized departments in the local authorities, 
government offices and different organizations. The coordinator will provide you information about different subjects 
and will help you with different processes: registering in an Hebrew Ulpan, registering your children in different 
educational frameworks, searching for a job etc. The coordinator’s aid will direct you to the right places and will spare 
you from wasting time.
For more information about the local coordinators near your residence, please contact the Ministry of Aliyah 
and Integration’s regional branch near your place of residence (see list of telephone numbers on the next 
page) or visit the website of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration where the lists of coordinators and the 
contact details with them are updated:
https://www.gov.il/he/Departments/General/local_aliyah_coordinators

https://www.gov.il/he/Departments/General/local_aliyah_coordinators
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The staff and administration of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration are at your service
for anything that you need in order to assist you during your absorption.

Haifa and Northern District
1-599-500-922

Haifa and Krayot
1-599-500-922

Upper Galilee
1-599-500-920

Nof HaGalil VeHaAmakim
1-599-500-903

Hadera
1-599-500-904

Tel Aviv and Central District
1-599-500-901

Tel Aviv
1-599-500-901

Holon
1-559-500-908

Netanya and the Sharon
1-599-500-905

Petach Tikva and the Shfela
1-599-500-907

Southern and Jerusalem District
1-599-500-921

Beer Sheva and Negev
1-599-500-921

Jerusalem and Judea
1-599-500-923

Ashdod and Ashkelon
1-599-500-914

Telephone Information Center: 03-973 3333 | *2994
info@moia.gov.il | www.klita.gov.il



IT’S IMPORTANT WE STAY IN PERSONAL TOUCH 
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration offers you absorption counselors who speak your 
language, at the regional offices and branches throughout the country. Your personal 
absorption counselor will devise with you an absorption plan, accompany you and assist you 
with all of your needs.

Details on the website: www.klita.gov.il  
  

Everything – so that 
you’ll feel at home
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